
Dinas a Sir Abertawe

Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod

Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod 

Panel Perfformiad Craffu - Gwella Gwasanaethau a 
Chyllid

Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgor 5 - Neuadd y Ddinas, Abertawe

Dyddiad: Dydd Mawrth, 5 Mehefin 2018

Amser: 10.00 am

Cynullydd: Y Cynghorydd  Chris Holley OBE

Aelodaeth:
Cynghorwyr: P Downing, P R Hood-Williams, L James, M H Jones, P K Jones, 
J W Jones, I E Mann, B J Rowlands a/ac D W W Thomas

Agenda
Rhif y Dudalen.

1  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

2  Ethol Cynullydd Panel

3  Datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol.
www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests

4  Cylch gorchwyl 1

5  Nodiadau, Llythyr y Cynullydd ac Ymateb 2 - 17
Cymeradwyo a llofnodi, fel cofnod cywir, gofnodion y cyfarfod 
blaenorol.

6  Cwestiynau gan y Cyhoedd
 Chris Williams – Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Masnachol

7  Cynllun Gwaith 2018 - 2019 18 - 20

Cyfarfod nesaf: Dydd Mawrth, 19 Mehefin 2018 ar 11.00 am

Huw Evans

http://www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests


Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
Dydd Mawrth, 30 Mai 2018
Cyswllt: Scrutiny 636292



Terms of Reference

 Service Improvement and Finance Performance Panel 

1. Why is this topic important?
 Scrutiny can make an important contribution to the budget process by 

providing a critical friend for the Cabinet and engaging non executive 
councillors

 Scrutiny can make an important contribution to the annual 
improvement process, in particular to the Corporate Improvement Plan, 
Annual Review of Performance and the response to the Wales Audit 
Office Annual Improvement Report. 

 The Welsh Government states that “There is a clear role for an 
authority’s scrutiny function in its improvement processes: as part of its 
role in holding local decision makers and policy makers to account, and 
in its policy development role”.

 The Welsh Government further states that: “If an authority’s scrutiny 
processes are sufficiently developed, and there is clear evidence that 
this is the case then this scrutiny activity can be drawn upon by the 
Auditor General and relevant regulators in the course of their dealings 
with the authority1.”

2. What is the purpose of this Panel? 

To ensure that the Council’s budget, corporate and service improvement 
arrangements are effective and efficient. 

3. What are the possible lines of inquiry?
 Consider quarterly and annual corporate finance reports
 Consider proposals for the Council’s annual revenue and capital 

budgets including savings proposals
 Look at medium and long term planning arrangements
 Look at whether financial and policy objectives are aligned
 Consider quarterly and annual performance reports and whether any 

issues need to be looked at further
 Consider the Council’s overall improvement processes
 Look at the fitness of the Council to discharge the general duty to 

improve
 Look at the processes that the Council has gone through in the 

selection of its improvement objectives, including engagement with 
stakeholders

 Look at how the delivery of improvement objectives are monitored
 Provide challenge and new ideas

1 Local Government Measure 2009 – Part 1 Guidance to Local Authorities – Wales 
Programme for Improvement para 3.29 & 3.30.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Service 
Improvement & Finance

Committee Room 5 - Guildhall, Swansea 

Wednesday, 7 February 2018 at 10.30 am

Present: Councillor C A Holley (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s)
P Downing P R Hood-Williams L James
M H Jones P K Jones J W Jones
I E Mann B J Rowlands D W W Thomas

Co-opted Member(s) Co-opted Member(s) Co-opted Member(s)

Other Attendees
Robert Francis-Davies Cabinet Member - Culture, Tourism & Major Projects

Officer(s)
Karen Gibbins Principal Librarian Information And Learning
Bethan Hopkins Scrutiny Officer
Frances Jenkins Strategic Manager Tourism Marketing and Events
Ben Smith Head of Financial Services & Service Centre and Section 

151 Officer

Apologies for Absence
Councillor(s): 
Co-opted Member(s): 
Other Attendees: 

12 Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

Lynda James – Personal interest item 6

13 Minutes.

Approved

14 Public Questions

None

15 Quarter 3 Budget Monitoring

Page 2

Agenda Item 5



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Service Improvement & Finance (07.02.2018)
Cont’d

 The overspend scale is improving, however the whole of the contingency fund 
will be spent

 67% of savings proposals have been met
 Things are getting tight across all local authorities
 If suggested savings are not made by the end of the year, it compounds the 

impact on future budgets
 There are difficult decisions for Cabinet and Council
 Any non-savings will have to be met elsewhere as we are not drawing from 

general reserves
 Still working through full settlements regarding grants
 Reductions in grants will impact services
 This can disproportionally impact some services over others
 Very little unencumbered money comes to the Council
 The enhanced ER/VR rate is for a limited time and is an invest to save 

approach

16 Welsh Public Library Standards - Annual Performance Report 16/17

 The quality framework for libraries ensures that libraries meet certain 
standards

 There are 17 libraries in Swansea
 Housebound services for those who can’t access libraries
 The libraries are spread throughout the authority
 Over 1.1 million people used the libraries in 16/17
 Link in with council priorities
 There are 18 core entitlements and 16 quality indicators to meet
 There are a couple of areas for improvement but overall the libraries perform 

very well
 6th in Wales for physical visits despite the fact that buildings are stand alone 

and not bringing footfall in from multiuse buildings
 3rd in Wales for regular and active borrowing
 2nd highest in Wales for audio-visual and electronic borrowing
 There are high levels of customer satisfaction within the library service
 Reservations and requests are improving
 All libraries have wifi
 There is a new framework for 2017/2020 with an emphasis on health and 

wellbeing targeting people in the community with specific needs
 There are more targeted services and evaluations
 Cabinet Member noted that the libraries are now multi use and people are 

accessing them for a range of reasons and to access services which are 
being provided. This includes social interaction and helping tackle loneliness

 The Panel thanked the staff for their service in light of consistent cuts
 Cabinet member and head of service thanked the team for their contributions 

and hard work in difficult staffing circumstances

17 Work Plan 2017/18

Page 3



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Service Improvement & Finance (07.02.2018)
Cont’d

 The next meeting on 12th February at 10.30am will be a pre-scrutiny of the 
Highways and Transportation Commissioning Review

 The meeting on 14th February at 10am and will look at the budget

The meeting ended at 11.50 am

Chair

Page 4



City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Service 
Improvement & Finance

Committee Room 5 - Guildhall, Swansea 

Monday, 12 February 2018 at 10.30 am

Present: Councillor C A Holley (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s)
P R Hood-Williams L James M H Jones
J W Jones

Other Attendees
Mark Thomas Cabinet Member - Environment Services

Officer(s)
Stuart Davies Head of Highways & Transportation

Bethan Hopkins Scrutiny Officer

Phillip John Project Manager

Apologies for Absence
Councillor(s): P Downing, P K Jones, I E Mann, B J Rowlands and D W W Thomas

1 Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

None

2 Public Questions

None

3 Highways and Transportation Commissioning Review

Meeting abandoned due to issues with Cabinet papers.
Further meeting to be advised.

Meeting took place on 14th February to include an additional report which was not 
included in the original paperwork.
Notes as follows;

(Note: This meeting was adjourned to the 14th February)

Page 5



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Service Improvement & Finance (12.02.2018)
Cont’d

 The report has been ongoing for quite some time but due to cross cutting 
reviews and changes it has been delayed

 The intention was to pull apart all of the service and analyse what was 
happening and benchmark where appropriate

 All services are attempting to be streamlined
 Also explored adverse funding proposals and rejected ones which were not 

appropriate
 Attempting to get staff to multitask as much as possible where appropriate 
 There is a limit to the extent of cuts you can make before you damage a 

service
 The success of the Marina was recognised
 Formation of an Integrated Transport Unit was recognised as a positive
 Roads are hugely underfunded but the department is trying to be innovative
 Completing road safety audits for other local authorities to maximise income
 Very pleased that the bus station management is efficient and cost effective
 Issues around on street parking enforcement and difficulties in implementing 

residents parking schemes were discussed.
 Some roads are inspected monthly and some annually. There are repair 

timescales with severe road issues. We are in a better position than many 
other local authorities but fixing potholes does not improve the road network

 Not enough money is being spent on road maintenance and the maintenance 
of the areas surrounding the roads

 Explored whether there is a limit of money which can be spent in each 
electoral ward per year on PATCH Team repair works

 LED lighting has been successful; it has saved not only money but has led to 
energy reduction and a reduction of carbon emissions. Explored which areas 
of Swansea are still waiting for LED lights to be fitted

 The review is widespread and in great depth
 Compliments to the team for putting it all together

4 Exclusion of the Public

None

5 Highways and Transportation Commissioning Review

Discussed excluded items

The meeting ended at 11.10 am

Chair

Page 6



 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY / TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU 
 

SWANSEA COUNCIL / CYNGOR ABERTAWE 
GUILDHALL, SWANSEA, SA1 4PE / NEUADD Y DDINAS, ABERTAWE, SA1 4PE 

 

www.swansea.gov.uk / www.abertawe.gov.uk 
 

I dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch â’r person uchod 
To receive this information in alternative format, or in Welsh please contact the above 

 1  
 
 

To/ 
Councillor  Mark Thomas 
Cabinet Member for Environment 
Services 
  
 
 
BY EMAIL 

Please ask for: 
Gofynnwch am: 

Overview & Scrutiny 
  

Direct Line: 
Llinell Uniongyrochol: 

01792 636292 
  

e-Mail 
e-Bost: 

scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk 

  
  

Date 
Dyddiad: 

6th March 2018 

 

Summary: This is a letter from the Service Improvement and Finance Panel 
Performance Panel to the Cabinet Member for Environment Services following the 
meeting of the Panel on 14th February 2018. It concerns the Highways and 
Transportation Commissioning Review. 

 
Dear Councillor Thomas, 

On 14th February 2018, the Service Improvement and Finance Performance Panel 
met to consider the Highways and Transportation Commissioning Review.  

We are grateful to everyone involved for providing information and answering 
questions and we recognise the amount of work which has gone into this 
commissioning review. 

We have made a number of observations that we wish to share with you and have 
some questions we would be grateful to receive responses to. 

1. We feel that this commissioning review is too big. The scope and content of the 
work is too broad and does not form the basis for a coherent commissioning review. 
It may have been better to split the services out to create a more manageable 
document. 

2. Regarding 3.2 the Central Transport Unit – we feel that combining the services is 
the best way going forward and provides for more effective management of the 
services. A new site (yard) has been talked about for many years. Can you advise 
what progress has been made? 

 

Page 7

http://www.swansea.gov.uk/
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/


 
 

 
 

3. Servicing vehicles and undertaking MOTs under a depot reorganisation would 
create a revenue stream which would be beneficial to the Council. 

4. It is important to remember that bus services are vital to many people. Any 
changes will be a huge pressure for the public and for us as a Council. We should 
have a clear view of the subsidies and the reasons for them. Can you provide this? 

5. In previous years we had an excellent relationship as part of the SWITCH group. It 
appears that we are moving back (albeit informally) to this arrangement and we 
believe this is a positive approach. 

6. We were very pleased to see that the bus station management is both effective 
and cost neutral. It is a much improved bus station and this is a good outcome. 

7. Not enough money is being spent on roadway and network maintenance. 
Continually patching roads is not a long term solution. Accompanying this, the areas 
surrounding the roads need to be looked at and dealt with as part of highways 
maintenance. Insufficient drainage and water discharging directly onto road surfaces 
is also contributing to the poor state of roads and causing problematic driving 
conditions. There is no clear view on the cost effectiveness of patching, in relation to 
resurfacing a road. Can you provide this? 

8. Following on from this, can you advise whether there is a limit to the amount of 
road patching (in financial terms) which can be done in an electoral ward in one 
year? 

9. We read about the money saving and environmental benefits of LED lighting. 
Which specific areas of Swansea are yet to have LED street lights installed? As a 
percentage, how much of Swansea does this represent? 

This review was widespread in nature and required a great depth of work into each 
specific area. It was complex and thorough and we compliment the team for putting 
together the report. 

I would be grateful if you could reply to this letter by 27th March 2018. 
 
Yours sincerely,  

 
 
Councillor Chris Holley 
Convener, Service Improvement and Finance Scrutiny Performance Panel 
 cllr.chris.holley@swansea.gov.uk  
 

 

Page 8

mailto:chris.holley@swansea.gov.uk


 
 

 
 

 

Page 9



 

 

Cabinet Office 

The Guildhall, 

Swansea, SA1 4PE 

www.swansea.gov.uk 

Please ask for: 

Direct Line: 

E-Mail: 

Our Ref: 

Your Ref: 

Date: 

To receive this information in alternative format, or in Welsh please contact the above. 
I dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch â’r person uchod.  

Dear Councillor Holley 
 
SERVICE IMPROVEMENT AND FINANCE SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL, 
14 FEBRUARY 2018   - HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONING 
REVIEW 
 
Thank you for your letter dated 6th March which included a number of positive 
observations and recognition of the work put in to this review. These compliments 
have been passed on to the officers involved. It is recognised that the Highways and 
Transportation service is a large and complex service and hence it is unavoidable 
that the commissioning review was a very significant piece of work.  It is very 
important that the review was a comprehensive and thorough assessment of the 
Service and I feel that this has been achieved. 
 
I respond to the questions raised as follows: 
 
2.  Regarding 3.2 the Central Transport Unit – we feel that combining 

services is the best way going forward and provides for more effective 
management of the services. A new site (yard) has been talked about for 
many years. Can you advise what progress has been made? 

 
In marketing the Pipehouse Wharf site (in support of the river corridor development) 
Cabinet and officers are committed to relocating the services currently based at the 
site, namely Central Transport Unit and Refuse and Cleansing, to alternative 
practical locations. 
 
Whereas in previous years much consideration was given to a ‘super depot’, under 
current financial constraints this is not the most appropriate way forward. 
 
Commercial discussions and background works are underway to facilitate: 
 

a) the movement of Refuse and Cleansing operations up to Ferryboat Close 
where they will be in close proximity to our other waste operations; and  

Councillor Mark Thomas 

01792 63 6926 

cllr.mark.thomas@swansea.gov.uk 

MT/JW 

 

 22 March 2018 

Councillor Chris Holley 

Convener, Service Improvement and 

Finance Scrutiny Performance Panel 

 

 

BY EMAIL 

Page 10

mailto:cllr.mark.thomas@swansea.gov.uk


 

 
Page 2 

 
 
b) the movement of our Central Transport Unit (fleet management) to a site 

further east on the Enterprise Park. 
 
Alongside the commercial acquisitions process for these sites, the Council is 
engaged in drawing up and pricing designs for groundworks as appropriate.  Given 
the current state of play it is hoped that these moves will take place during Spring 
2019. 
 
 
4.  It is important to remember that bus services are vital to many people. 
 Any changes will be a huge pressure for the public and for us as a 
 Council. We  should have a clear view of the subsidies and the reasons 
 for them. Can you provide this? 
 
The majority of bus services in the Swansea area are provided on a commercial 
basis by the bus companies. The Council’s role is to monitor the commercial bus 
service network and identify any gaps in provision. If there are gaps, the Council has 
the authority to fill them by seeking competitive tenders for services that it feels are 
‘socially necessary’.  
 
At present the Council funding for these services is in the region of £1.13m per 
annum and of this, around £500k is from a Welsh Government Bus Services 
Support Grant. Services provided by the Council are not allowed to compete with or 
undermine the viability of services provided by companies on a commercial basis. 
 
The services that receive funding are those that the bus companies do not consider 
profitable so they are at times and on days where fewer people travel. The contracts 
range from single journeys to several journeys at particular times of day to whole 
networks in rural areas, such as Gower. Many of the services operate on weekdays 
in the early mornings and evenings, in rural areas, to housing estates off the main 
bus corridors and on Sundays / Bank holidays. 
 
A summary of the current contracts is attached and can also be viewed on the 
Council’s website at: www.swansea.gov.uk/article/7026/Bus-services-funded-by-the-
council 
 
The next planned round of tendering will be in 2019 but there are ongoing reviews in 
the light of decisions made by commercial bus operators and the need to consider 
replacement facilities for any services they decide to withdraw. 
 
In order to monitor usage, contractors are required to supply information on 
passengers carried on a monthly basis and this is supplemented by on bus 
passenger surveys carried out by the Council’s monitoring staff. 

Page 11

http://www.swansea.gov.uk/article/7026/Bus-services-funded-by-the-council
http://www.swansea.gov.uk/article/7026/Bus-services-funded-by-the-council


 

Page 3 
 
 
 
7.  Not enough money is being spent on roadway and network maintenance. 
 Continually patching roads is not a long term solution. Accompanying 
 this, the areas surrounding the roads need to be looked at and dealt 
 with as part of highways maintenance. Insufficient drainage and water 
 discharging directly onto road surfaces is also contributing to the poor 
 state of roads and causing problematic driving conditions. There is  no 
 clear view on the  cost effectiveness of patching, in relation to 
 resurfacing a road. Can you provide this? 
 
It is recognised across the UK that there is a significant highways maintenance 
backlog and prioritising additional funding is the only way to tackle the problem. In 
Swansea an additional £1m of insurance fund money has been spent on highways 
every year over the last four years and a further £1.4m of expenditure has been 
allocated on highways this year in response to the commissioning review. In 
addition to this the Welsh Government have provided an additional capital 
contribution of £1.8m for highway maintenance during 2017/18. 
 
There is a very clear view over the cost effectiveness of reactive repairs and 
patching compared to resurfacing works. In short it is an accepted industry fact that 
the most cost effective treatments are preventative, followed by large scale quality 
resurfacing, structural patching and finally reactive measures. These issues are well 
understood and form the principals of the All Wales Asset Management Programme 
of which the Authority is a lead member.  
 
In terms of value for money reactive maintenance is far more expensive than 
resurfacing, with 8 to 10 times being typical examples being quoted. No exact figure 
can be given as it will vary between repairs and treatments but this is an accepted 
principal. The authority aims to maximise its spend on both preventative 
maintenance, resurfacing and proactive patching however safety maintenance is a 
statutory requirement and therefore as network condition deteriorates the 
percentage spend on reactive maintenance will increase. 
 
8.  Following on from this, can you advise whether there is a limit to the 
 amount of road patching (in financial terms) which can be done in an 
 electoral ward in one year? 

 
In terms of the PATCH programme we are currently committed to 1 week per ward 
per year with the remaining weeks of the programme allocated on an engineering 
needs basis determined by the condition of the road.  In terms of safety patching 
this is carried out as a result of routine safety inspections. In terms of finance there 
is no limit as each scheme will be designed on need and costed accordingly.  

Page 12



 

Page 4 

 
 
9.  We read about the money saving and environmental benefits of LED 
 lighting. Which specific areas of Swansea are yet to have LED street 
 lights installed? As a percentage, how much of Swansea does this 
 represent? 
 
In general all areas of Swansea have had LED street lamps installed. The 
exceptions to this are as follows: 
 

 Columns that have been identified as needing to be changed under the 
structural testing programme (1.4% of the network). 

 Main roads - due to the costs of lanterns for the taller columns (10M and 
12M) dimming gear has been fitted as an economic alternative (13.5% of 
the network). 

 Lights on non-adopted highway - these are spread through the County 
(3.8% of the network). 

 
In addition, there are some lights in the City Centre that have not been converted, 
these being: 
 

 Kingsway - omitted due to the proposed improvement scheme. 

 Wind Street - L.E.D.s are unsuitable for the decorative columns. 

 Princess Way - these are taller columns but dimming gear has not been 
fitted, in support of the night time economy and health and safety. 

 
 

I trust this information provides a response to the issues recorded at the Service 

Improvement and Finance Scrutiny Performance Panel. 

 
 
  
Yours sincerely 

 
 
COUNCILLOR MARK THOMAS 
CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT SERVICES  
  
  
  
 

Page 13



City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Service 
Improvement & Finance

Committee Room 5 - Guildhall, Swansea 

Wednesday, 14 February 2018 at 10.00 am

Present: Councillor C A Holley (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s)
P R Hood-Williams L James P K Jones
J W Jones C E Lloyd I E Mann

Officer(s)
Bethan Hopkins
Cllr Rob Stewart
Cllr Clive Lloyd

Ben Smith

Scrutiny Officer
Cabinet Member for Economy and Strategy
Cabinet Member for Service Transformation and 
Business Operations
Head of Financial Services and Service Centre

Apologies for Absence
Councillor(s): P Downing, M H Jones, B J Rowlands and D W W Thomas
Co-opted Member(s): 
Other Attendees: 

1 Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

None

2 Public Questions

None

3 Scrutiny of the Annual Budget

Service Improvement and Finance Scrutiny Performance Panel Budget 
Discussion Points

The following key points were raised:

 The report overall has been written well by Ben Smith, it is accessible and is 
the best we have seen in a long time. Compliments to Ben

 The consultation exercise was lacking. It was generic and it did not phrase 
questions properly to maximise information giving. The way you ask questions 
and who you ask is important. Should be improved going forward.

Page 14



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Service Improvement & Finance (14.02.2018)
Cont’d

 The Capital Financing Charges are a major worry as there is no growth in 
money from Welsh Government

 It is important to consider details around some investments – for example 
gearing of rents in properties Council will lease out

 A £3m contingency/reserve budget for next year seems low

Schools Performance Panel

The following key points were raised:

 Are supportive of the education related budget proposals and of how monies 
have been allocated given the current budget situation.

 The issue of year on year funding from Welsh Government was raised 
especially in light of the need to plan services over the longer term (as 
referenced in the Wellbeing and Future Generation Act).  The panel recognise 
that the authority does develop an indicative 3 year medium term plan but this 
will change year on year depending on the local authority’s allocation from 
Welsh Government.  The panel would encourage councils to work together to 
make representations to Welsh Government around developing a longer term 
funding plan.  The Panel were also keen to see changes made that reduce 
the lag between allocation of grants from Welsh Government and actual 
receipt of that funding.

 The Panel had concerns about the impact that the 11% cut to the education 
improvement grant will have on supporting services in particular the Ethnic 
Minority Achievement Service but were pleased to hear that the authority are 
looking to fill the gap for some services from reserves for 1 year.

 The Panel heard that some schools were managing the difficult budgetary 
situation better than others: the panel felt that sharing good practice across 
schools in relation to this aspect would be highly beneficial.

 Could look to reduce the cost of school transport by using existing transport 
resources owned by the Council. Working across departments, for example 
using social services mini buses.

Adult Services Panel

The following key points were raised:

 Last year Adult Services was £3 million over budget.  The Panel feels that the 
overspend was not controlled last year.

 There is a discrepancy in the figures – Panel told budget for Adult Services 
next year had been increased by £3.5 million.  However on page 118 on the 
budget proposals it says £2.7 million and on page 182 on the budget 
proposals it equates to £4.5 million.  Need clarification of the correct figure.

 The Panel is concerned over savings not being achieved this year despite 
being told they could be.

 The Panel was concerned that despite over 70% of consultees being opposed 
to the new charges for day centres, the recommendation is to go ahead and 
impose them.

Page 15



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Service Improvement & Finance (14.02.2018)
Cont’d

Child and Family Services

The following key points were raised:

 Reasonably satisfied with the budget proposed for CFS for 2018/19 and with 
the improvements to be increased and enhanced

 Noted the increased budget for CFS is mainly to cover inflationary increases 
in salaries

 The panel feels that Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) 
needs to be monitored closely

 The panel feels that early intervention is really important.  It welcomes the 
forward thinking but will want to monitor this going forward.

The meeting ended at 12.45 pm

Chair

Page 16



 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY / TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU 
 

SWANSEA COUNCIL / CYNGOR ABERTAWE 
GUILDHALL, SWANSEA, SA1 4PE / NEUADD Y DDINAS, ABERTAWE, SA1 4PE 

 

www.swansea.gov.uk / www.abertawe.gov.uk 
 

I dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch â’r person uchod 
To receive this information in alternative format, or in Welsh please contact the above 

 

To/ 
Councillor  Rob Stewart 
Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Strategy  
  
 
 
BY EMAIL 
 
 

Please ask for: 
Gofynnwch am: 

Overview & Scrutiny 
  

Direct Line: 
Llinell Uniongyrochol: 

01792 636292 
  

e-Mail 
e-Bost: 

scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk 

  
  

Date 
Dyddiad: 

6th March 2018 

 
 

Summary: This is a letter from the Service Improvement and Finance Performance 
Panel to the Cabinet Member for Economy and Strategy following the meeting of the 
Panel on 14th February 2018. It concerns the Annual Budget. 

 
Dear Councillor Stewart, 

On 14th February 2018, the Service Improvement and Finance Performance Panel 
met to consider the Annual Budget.  

Thank you for attending along with Councillor Clive Lloyd and Ben Smith and  for 
providing us with information and answers. 

We have made a number of observations that we wish to share with you. 

We heard that similar to previous years, austerity continues and the funding 
Swansea Council will receive is insufficient for its needs. We also heard that the 
lifting of the public sector pay cap will have financial consequences above what was 
anticipated which puts further pressure on the budget. 

However, we also heard that savings of over 60 million pounds have been made 
over the last 3 years which is an accomplishment. 

We know that more money needs to flow from both Central and Welsh Government 
just to meet the basic needs of citizens and that Cabinet and Council have some 
very difficult decisions to make over the foreseeable future. 

As part of the budget process, each Scrutiny Performance Panel had an opportunity 
to feedback on their particular area of work. 

Page 17

http://www.swansea.gov.uk/
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/


 
 

 

 2  
 
 

Please find below the observations which have been circulated to the Cabinet and 
presented at the Cabinet meeting on 15th February 2018. 

Service Improvement and Finance Scrutiny Performance Panel  
 
We are grateful to the Leader, Councillor Clive Lloyd and Ben Smith Head of 
Financial Services and Service Centre, for attending our meeting on 14th February 
to discuss budget proposals in advance of the Cabinet Meeting, and answering 
questions from the panel. 
 
The following key points were raised: 
 

 The consultation exercise was lacking. It was generic and it did not phrase 
questions properly to maximise information giving. The way you ask questions 
and who you ask is important. Should be improved going forward. We suggest 
that a longer term solution to this could be looked at to engage more people. 

 The Capital Financing Charges are a major worry as there is no growth in 
money from Welsh Government 

 It is important to consider details around some investments – for example 
gearing of rents in properties Council will lease out 

 A £3m reserves budget for next year seems low 
 
Schools Performance Panel 
 
The Panel met and consider the budget papers for Cabinet 13 February. The Panel 
is grateful to Cllr Jen Raynor, Cabinet member for Education, Nick Williams, Chief 
Education Officer and Brian Roles, Head of Education Planning & Resources who 
attended and provided advice and answers to questions. 
 
The following key points were raised: 
 

 The Panel are supportive of the education related budget proposals and of 
how monies have been allocated given the current budget situation. 

 The issue of year on year funding from Welsh Government was raised 
especially in light of the need to plan services over the longer term (as 
referenced in the Wellbeing and Future Generation Act).  The panel recognise 
that the authority does develop an indicative 3 year medium term plan but this 
will change year on year depending on the local authority’s allocation from 
Welsh Government.  The panel would encourage councils to work together to 
make representations to Welsh Government around developing a longer term 
funding plan.  The Panel were also keen to see changes made that reduce 
the lag between allocation of grants from Welsh Government and actual 
receipt of that funding. 

 The Panel had concerns about the impact that the 11% cut to the education 
improvement grant will have on supporting services in particular the Ethnic 
Minority Achievement Service but were pleased to hear that the authority are 
looking to fill the gap for some services from reserves for 1 year. 

Page 18



 
 

 

 3  
 
 

 The Panel heard that some schools were managing the difficult budgetary 
situation better than others: the panel felt that sharing good practice across 
schools in relation to this aspect would be highly beneficial. 

 Reduce the cost of school transport by using existing transport resources 
owned by the Council. Working across departments, for example using social 
services mini buses. 

 
Adult Services Performance Panel 
 
The panel met and considered the budget papers for Cabinet 13 February including 
the revenue budget and savings proposals. The panel is grateful to Alex Williams 
and Dave Howes who attended the meeting and provided helpful advice and 
answers to questions 
 
The following key points were raised: 
 

 Last year Adult Services was £3 million over budget.  The Panel feels that the 
overspend was not controlled last year. 

 There is a discrepancy in the figures – Panel told budget for Adult Services 
next year had been increased by £3.5 million.  However on page 118 on the 
budget proposals it says £2.7 million and on page 182 on the budget 
proposals it equates to £4.5 million.  Please clarify. 

 The Panel is concerned over savings not being achieved this year despite 
being told they could be. 

 The Panel was concerned that despite over 70% of consultees being opposed 
to the new charges for day centres, the recommendation is to go ahead and 
impose them. 

 In relation to safeguarding/wellbeing, we noted that this is the only line in the 
proposed budget which reduces. Please can you provide clarification of what 
this reduction is? 

 
Child and Family Services Performance Panel 
 
The panel met and considered the budget papers for Cabinet 13 February including 
the revenue budget and savings proposals The panel is grateful to Julie Thomas and 
Dave Howes who attended the meeting and provided helpful advice and answers to 
questions 
 
The following key points were raised: 
 

 Reasonably satisfied with the budget proposed for CFS for 2018/19 and with 
the improvements to be increased and enhanced 

 Noted the increased budget for CFS is mainly to cover inflationary increases 
in salaries 

 The panel feels that Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) 
needs to be monitored closely 

 The panel feels that early intervention is really important.  It welcomes the 
forward thinking but will want to monitor this going forward. 

Page 19



 
 

 

 4  
 
 

These points were presented to Cabinet by Councillor Chris Holley on 15th February 
however we have included them in this letter for your record. 

We feel that regarding layout and content, Ben Smith has put together the best 
budget we have seen in a long time. The issues have been highlighted well and 
barring a few tables which could have benefited from more detailed explanation we 
feel that it is accessible and very well written. 

Please respond by 27th March 2018. 

Yours sincerely,  
 

 
 
Councillor Chris Holley 
Convener, Service Improvement and Finance Scrutiny Performance Panel 
 cllr.chris.holley@swansea.gov.uk 

  

 

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Service 
Improvement & Finance

Committee Room 5 - Guildhall, Swansea 

Wednesday, 28 March 2018 at 10.30 am

Present: Councillor C A Holley (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s)
P Downing P R Hood-Williams L James
P K Jones J W Jones I E Mann
B J Rowlands D W W Thomas

Officer(s)
Bethan Hopkins
Richard Rowlands

Scrutiny Officer
Corporate Performance Manager

Apologies for Absence
Councillor(s): M H Jones

1 Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

None

2 Minutes.

Approved

3 Public Questions

None

4 Q3 Performance Monitoring Report 2017/18

 Richard Rowlands attended to give his update on the Q3 Performance Report 
2017/18

 58% of targets have been met in the Corporate Performance Against Target
 Page 13 of the report shows that Transformation and Future Council priority is 

showing a decline in performance
Priority 1 -Safeguarding

 AS8/AS9/Measure 19 are all showing declining results

Page 25



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Service Improvement & Finance (28.03.2018)
Cont’d

 CFS18/CFS19/Measure 24 all have declining trends due to a high demand 
level – Cllr Paxton Hood-Williams the convener of the Childs Services 
Scrutiny Performance Panel stated that although the measures have declining 
trends, it is important that the safeguarding issues are identified and the 
performance panel are monitoring this
Priority 2 – Education and Skills

 EDU016a has a slight downturn from last year
Priority 3 – Economy and Infrastructure

 EC4 There has been a delay in the building of new houses
Priority 4 – Tackling Poverty

 SUSC1/SUSC3 Both show a gradual decline in performance but the Panel is 
unsure how effective perception opinions are at measuring performance
Priority 5 – Transformation and Future Council

 CUST6/SUSC2 Decline in trends, again down to public opinions
 CHR002 A task and finish group has been established to review Terms and 

Conditions including the management of absence policy
 FINA6 – this measure is still achievable but has been delayed
 Because targets change each year, it is very hard to measure consistency
 There are attempts to get consistency in the measures themselves so trends 

can be developed
 Corporate Performance Manager can bring along trend data for some PIs if 

he knows which ones the Panel wants in advance

5 Work plan 2017-2018

 Discussed the remainder of the work plan – charges item scheduled for the 
next meeting

The meeting ended at 11.00 am

Chair

Page 26



 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY / TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU 
 

SWANSEA COUNCIL / CYNGOR ABERTAWE 
GUILDHALL, SWANSEA, SA1 4PE / NEUADD Y DDINAS, ABERTAWE, SA1 4PE 

 

www.swansea.gov.uk / www.abertawe.gov.uk 
 

I dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch â’r person uchod 
To receive this information in alternative format, or in Welsh please contact the above 

 

To/ 
Councillor  Rob Stewart 
Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Strategy  
  
 
 
BY EMAIL 
 
 

Please ask for: 
Gofynnwch am: 

Overview & Scrutiny 
  

Direct Line: 
Llinell Uniongyrochol: 

01792 636292 
  

e-Mail 
e-Bost: 

scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk 

  
  

Date 
Dyddiad: 

27th April 2018 

 
 

Summary: This is a letter from the Service Improvement and Finance Performance 
Panel to the Cabinet Member for Economy and Strategy following the meeting of the 
Panel on 28th March 2018. It concerns the Quarter 3 Performance Monitoring Report 
2017/18. 

 
Dear Councillor Stewart, 

On 28th March 2018, the Service Improvement and Finance Performance Panel met 
to consider the Quarter 3 Performance Monitoring Report 2017/18.  

We would like to thank Richard Rowlands for attending to brief the Panel on the 
report. 

We have made a number of observations that we wish to share with you. 

1. The performance of free school meals pupils remains stable at key stages 2 and 
3. However, the gap in performance for free schools meals pupils had widened in 
2017 at key stages 4 and at foundation phase. We would like to find out if there are 
any underlying issues and what is being done to address this? 

2. We read that commercial floor space continues to be delivered via the Vibrant and 
Viable Places funded schemes with public and private sector partners across the 
City Centre. Can you provide us with the figure relating to the amount of floor space 
which is due to be delivered? 

3. Training and employment person weeks are being created by the Councils 
Beyond Bricks and Mortar scheme for the unemployed and economically inactive. 
Can you provide us with the number of training weeks being created? 

Page 27

http://www.swansea.gov.uk/
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/


 
 

 

 2  
 
 

4. The number of new housing units created in Swansea City Centre (as a result of 
V&VP Realising the Potential funding) is below target due to the delay of one 
scheme. Can you provide details of the delay? 

5. The selected operators for the Arena project are very close to signing the legal 
agreement. Can you provide a timescale for this? 

6. We read that demolition of 232 and 233 Oxford St was due to commence in 
February. Could you please provide us with a breakdown of the demolition? Firstly 
as a breakdown for each property, then as an overall cost if the combined figure is 
different. 

7. Can you provide us with an update on the funding review which took place in 
March relating to the mid-term Heritage Lottery Funding review for the Hafod 
Copperworks? 

In addition, the Panel were concerned to read about high levels of staff sickness and 
we will be contacting the relevant department for a further breakdown relating to this. 

Please respond by 18th May 2018. 

Yours sincerely,  
 

 
 
Councillor Chris Holley 
Convener, Service Improvement and Finance Scrutiny Performance Panel 
 cllr.chris.holley@swansea.gov.uk 

Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Service Improvement and Finance Scrutiny Performance Panel

Draft Work Plan 2018/2019

All Meetings will take place in Committee Room 5
10am – 12pm (Unless stated otherwise)

Meeting 2
Tuesday June 5th

1. Election of Convener

2. Role of Panel and Terms of Reference
Councillor Chris Holley – Convener of Panel

3. Charges Item
Chris Williams – Head of Commercial Services
Sara Gibbons - Commercial Manager

Special
Commissioning Review
Tuesday June 19th

11am – 1pm

Cultural Programme – Final Bidder Options

 Martin Nicholls – Director Place
 Tracey McNulty – Head of Cultural Services
 Robert Francis-Davies – Cabinet Member 

Culture, Tourism and Major Projects
 Jamie Rewbridge -  Strategic Manager 

Leisure Partnerships Health Wellbeing

Meeting 3
Tuesday July 3rd

1. Welsh Language Standards Annual Report 
2017/18
Julie Nicholas Humphreys - Customer Services 
Manager

2. Q1 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 
2018/19
Ben Smith – Head of Financial Services and Service 
Centre

Meeting 4
Tuesday August 7th

1. Revenue and Capital Outturn and Financing  
2017/18
Ben Smith – Head of Financial Services and Service 
Centre 

2. End of Year 2017/18 Performance Monitoring 
Report 
Richard Rowlands – Corporate Performance 
Manager

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



Meeting 5 
Tuesday September 4th 1. Corporate Complaints Annual Report 2017/18

Julie Nicholas Humphreys - Customer Services 
Manager

2. Recycling and Landfill Annual Performance 
Monitoring 2018/19
Chris Howell – Head of Waste Management and 
Parks

Meeting 6
Tuesday October 2nd

1. Q1 2018/19 Performance Monitoring Report
Richard Rowlands – Corporate Performance 
Manager

2. Reserve Update
Ben Smith – Head of Financial Services and Service 
Centre 

3. Mid-Year Budget Statement 2018/19
Ben Smith – Head of Financial Services and Service 
Centre 

Meeting 7
Tuesday November 6th

1. Q2 Budget Monitoring
Ben Smith – Head of Financial Services and Service 
Centre 

2. Annual Review of Performance 2017/18
Richard Rowlands – Corporate Performance 
Manager

3. Planning Annual Performance Report
Ryan Thomas - Development Conservation and 
Design Manager

Meeting 8
Tuesday December 4th

1. Welsh Public Library Standards Annual Report 
2017/18
Karen Gibbins - Principal Librarian for Information &                               
Learning

2. Local Government Performance Bulletin 
2017/18
Bethan Hopkins – Scrutiny Officer

Meeting 9
Tuesday January 8th

1. Q2 Performance Monitoring Report
Richard Rowlands – Corporate Performance 
Manager

2. Budget Proposals 

Page 34



Ben Smith – Head of Financial Services and Service 
Centre 

Meeting 10
Tuesday February 5th

1. Q3 Budget Monitoring
Ben Smith – Head of Financial Services and Service 
Centre 

Meeting 11
Tuesday March 5th

1. Review of Community Groups – Friends of 
Parks/Community Centres 
Tracey McNulty – Head of Cultural Services

Meeting 12
Tuesday April 2nd

1. Q3 Performance Monitoring Report
Richard Rowlands – Corporate Performance 
Manager

To be scheduled;

 Budget Meeting (To review and feedback from all Panels)
 Commissioning Reviews 2016/17 Evaluation Item

Page 35


	Agenda
	4 Cylch gorchwyl
	5 Nodiadau, Llythyr y Cynullydd ac Ymateb
	Notes for approval 12.2.18
	Letter to CM for Environment Services CR
	Response from CM H&T CM
	Notes for approval 14.2.18
	Letter to CM for Economy and Strategy
	Response from CM Economy and Strategy
	Notes for approval 23.3.18
	Letter to Cabinet Member for Economy and Strategy
	Response from Cabinet Member

	7 Cynllun Gwaith 2018 - 2019

